DATE:  27 APR 04

TO:  ALL OFFERORS

SUBJECT:  AMENDMENT C TO COMPETITIVE INQUIRIES DA23SEP030208 AND

          DA23SEP030209 

1.  The purpose of this amendment is to provide the following:

    a.  Provide clarifying information for the term protected OC-192c

    b.  Questions and answers for subject inquiries

    c.  Establish a date for receipt of site survey specific

        questions

    d.  Extend the due date for receipt of quotes

2.  Clarification of the term “protected OC-192c”, where used in the subject inquiries is to mean two individual optical paths, 10Gbps (OC-192c) each, delivered to the fiber patch panel (or also referred to as the fiber termination panel) at each respective SDP identified in the inquiries.  The government will extend the two optical paths at each SDP to a government provided encryption device and then terminate them on separate working and protection cards in the ODXC government switch that will then perform the Automatic Protection Switching (APS).  Each optical path is to be protocol independent so that the government will have the ability to have any combination of STS/VT channels or concatenated (OC-3c, OC-12c, OC-48c) service payloads and the ability to manage the protection and application layers without vendor involvement.

3.  Questions and answers are provided as follows:

Question 1:  The Government requirements for ocean/submarine cable cut repair, while possible, may be unrealistic as a performance metric due to unforeseeable conditions, i.e., storms at sea. (3.2.2.2 Operation and Maintenance Scope)
  
Response 1: Paragraph 3.2.2.2 of the PWS is a requirement of this inquiry.  However, the specified requirements are excused for acts of God and war (e.g., relevant hurricane, earthquake, flood, fire, civil disturbance, etc. or act of government) provided that, in order to be excused from delay or failure to perform, the contractor must act diligently and reasonably to have made preparation as well as remedy the cause of such delay or failure. 

Question 2:  The requirement under 3.3.2 is titled SIGNAL REACH which would denote distance yet the requirement discusses transmission rates.  Please clarify.   (3.3.1 Signal Reach)
Response 2:  Paragraph 3.3.2 of the PWS is a requirement for these inquiries.  The solution provided by the contractor, in response to these inquiries, must support the specified transmission rates between the government service delivery points (as identified in the PWS and inquiries) regardless of the distances involved.

Question 3:   Our interpretation based on the service description in 5.0 and 5.1.1.3.5.1, and figures in 5.0 and 5.1.1.4.3.2 is that DISN requires four (4) diverse 10G wavelengths with transparent SONET/SDH overhead bytes that permit the DISN owned Sycamore 16000 SC switches to provide the protection switching. Also since DISN requires facility diversity, which is not possible if we provide the protection switching (both ends of the circuit have to come to the same switch in one facility for the protection switching action), we conclude this requirement is for four (4) diverse 10G wavelength services.  This is the preferred option since it increases the availability of the circuit (because there is less equipment) and decreases the cost (because there is less equipment). 
Please clarify the requirement as to whether it is OC192c protected private line or four 10G wavelengths.  (5.1.1.1.1.1 OC-192c).

Response 3:  The four (4) diverse 10G wavelength service description  provided above would be a technically acceptable solution to the diversity requirements and the automatic protection switching to be performed by the GFE switch as specified by both inquiries (DA23SEP030208 and DA23SEP030209).  It should not be construed that this is the only technically acceptable design or lowest cost solution to the diversity requirements specified in the subject inquiries.  The inquiry for DA23SEP030208 requires that the OC-192c circuit be provided fully diverse end to end (e.g., its working and protection paths to have complete facilities and route avoidance) and the government switch (SDN) will perform the switching, “K” bytes to be passed by the SDN, between the diverse working and protection paths.  Additionally, the fully diverse end to end circuit provided for DA23SEP030208 is to be fully diverse end to end from the circuit provided for DA23SEP030209 (e.g., any facilities and route used for DA23SEP030208 cannot be used for DA23SEP030209).  The aforementioned description applies equally to inquiry DA23SEP030209.

Question 4:  Given the unexpected conditions for transoceanic repair times the performance specification for availability is unrealistic.  A more realistic availability metric would be 0.9995.  (5.1.1.4.1 Performance Sets).

Response 4:  Paragraph 5.1.1.4.1 of the PWS is a requirement of the inquiries.  The provided performance specifications are for an end to end fully diverse circuit (i.e., its working and protection paths to have complete facilities and route avoidance) and the government switch (SDN) will perform the switching, “K” bytes to be passed by the SDN, between the diverse working and protection paths, as specified in the inquiry for DA23SEP030208.  The same performance specification apply equally to the circuit specified in inquiry DA23SEP030209.  

Question 5:  The industry terminology MTTR generally is understood as Mean time to Repair.  Please clarify the Government understanding.  Given the possibility of storms at sea and/or availability of a repair ship the 10 day maximum repair time for undersea segments is unrealistic.  (5.1.1.4.5.1 Maintenance time to Repair (MTTR) - End-to-End Assured Diversity)

Response 5:  Paragraph 5.1.1.4.5.1 of the PWS defines the Maintenance Time to Repair (MTTR) for the circuit specified in the inquiries.  Refer to the response provided to Question 1 for excused force majeure conditions.

Question 6:   TR DA23SEP030208 and TR DA23SEP030209
We request that the Government drop the requirement for purchase option (Clause 12 Fiber IRU Conditions paragraph A)  of the optical fibers and equipment at the end of the IRU TERM to be consistent with the shared services specified by the PWS and Inquiry.   The government has specified an IRU on bandwidth within the fiber optic cables and supporting optical, electronic and electrical equipment.   These facilities provide shared  services to other customers and would not available for purchase.

Response 6:  The purchase option is a requirement of this inquiry.  The option to purchase refers to an undivided interest in the relevant optical fibers and optronic and electrical equipment of the suppliers’ system, delivering such capacity and owned by the supplier, for which ownership and title, to the extent the supplier has such title can be offered.  The purchase option is intended to entail purchase and sole ownership of relevant assets that are not shared and undivided interest in relevant shared assets to the extent the supplier has title and it can be offered to the government.

Question 7:  - Para. 3.3.9 Network Management Requirement 
In order to fulfill the Network Monitoring and Notification, supplier equipment may need to be installed and maintained at the Government's facilities. Will the Government provide the necessary rack space and power for this equipment in close proximity to the Government provided  Service Delivery Point/ Patch  Panel?

Response 7:  The expectation of the Government is that vendor proposed solutions will minimize or not have a need for Government space and power. Vendors having a requirement for Government space and power will need to identify the details of such requirements in their quote and upon award submit a written request to use such Government facilities. The Government will negotiate in good faith with the respective local commands to secure the requested facilities (provided they are reasonable). However, no guarantee can be made as to proximity to the Government SDP.  Costs associated to provide or use Government facilities for vendor equipment will be the responsibility of the vendor.  

Question 8: - Para. 12. Fiber Indefeasible Right of Use (IRU) Conditions, Paragraph A. Sale: 
Can the Government better define the "relevant optical fibers, optical electronic, and/or electrical equipment associated with the fiber optical cable system(s) and access providing the end-to-end transmission between end points?". 

Response 8:  It is not possible for the government to define the relevant vendor components or systems, of which the vendor has title, and can be legally offered to the government with the option to purchase. 

Question 9:  Is it the Government's intention to limit its option to take title to the fiber to only newly constructed fiber on the CONUS portion of the fiber optic cable system?

Response 9:  There is no intent to single out or limit the option to take title to only newly constructed fiber on the CONUS portion of the fiber optic cable system.
Question 10:
Is the following interpretation correct:  The contractor will provide 4 linear unprotected and diverse paths to meet the requirement for complete physical diversity for both the primary and protect path, and the Government switch will perform the switching between the two paths?  If not, what is the correct interpretation? 

Response 10: See response to Question 3 above.

Question 11:
Will the Government increase the page count?  We do not anticipate a lengthy response, but 25 pages to respond to both the TSR and PWS requirements does not seem adequate, particularly as the TSR requires a paragraph-by-paragraph response to the PWS that contains enough detail “to enable the evaluators to form a concrete conclusion as to the offer’s response.”  The PWS alone is 22 pages long, and there are other sections that require page count, such as the past performance requirement and the draft CIP.  

Response 11:  The 25 page limitation pertains to the response to the PWS only.  The page count limitation does not include the response for the Comprehensive Implementation Plan (CIP), maps, drawings/diagrams, responses to the Special Provisions and clauses, or any representations or certifications as applicable. 

Question 12: The TSR states that contractors must “extend OC-192c service [from the South POP] to the line side of the DISA provided fiber patch panel installed in the ODXC suite/SDN located in the North POP Room BC-771.  Are GFE fiber facilities available to extend the OC-192 service from BC771 to 1B488 in the South PoP?

Response 12:  GFE facilities will be made available and are to be used for connection between the North PoP and South PoP.

Question 13:  Our experience has been that any services between the Pentagon’s North PoP and South PoP have been provided via the GFE fiber ring between the two locations. The TSR indicates it is up to the contractor to provide the fiber connectivity between the two PoPs.  Are cable trays, access to the site, etc. available from the Government for the contractor to complete the fiber pull between PoPs?

Response 13: See response to Question 12 above.
Question 14:  There are multiple commercial PoPs on Ft Belvoir. To meet the diversity requirement, will the Government allow the contractor to extend service from a separate commercial PoP on Ft. Belvoir to Bldg 2310?

Response 14:  The vendor must coordinate directly with the Site POCs identified in the inquiry to determine the feasibility.  Only the site can grant permission to the vendor for access or right of way to site facilities, if required.

Question 15:  The performance requirements provided in the PWS do not seem to apply to the diverse OC-192c circuits requested in each of the TSRs.  What are the performance and availability requirements for the two diverse OC-192c circuits for each of the TSR requests?  

Response 15:  The performance specifications provided in the PWS and the inquiries are the government’s requirements. The performance requirements are consistent with an end-to-end fully diverse circuit (i.e., its working and protection paths to have complete facilities and route avoidance) where Government switch (SDN) will perform the switching, "K" bytes to be passed by the SDN, between the diverse working and protection paths to be provided as specified in the inquiry for DA23SEP030208.  The same performance specifications apply equally to the circuit specified in inquiry DA23SEP030209.

Question 16: Reference: (See 5.1.1.3.3 and 5.1.1.3.5.1 of PWS.   We understand that each of the diverse OC-192c circuits must support 1+1 APS performed by the GFE.  Please provide detailed information on the SONET overhead transparency required to support the Government's GFE vendor implementation as well as any additional SONET overhead transparency requirements of the GFE for performance monitoring or other uses.  

Response 16: The inquiries, which include the Performance Work Specification (PWS), provides the SONET requirements for the subject circuits. These are considered consistent with industry standard SONET requirements with the addition of K1 and K2 protection switching by GFE.  Refer to the clarification statement provided for “Protected OC-192c” for additional information.  

Question 17:  The 50 ms requirement of the diversity section of the TSR does not define required functionality of the requested circuits, so we have no way of determining compliance to the requirements. What are the functional requirements of the requested circuits?

Response 17:  Refer to the Performance Work Specification (PWS) provided as part of the inquiries for the functional circuit requirements.  The restoration time requirement of 50ms is not applicable to these inquiries.  The Government switch is to perform the switching between the diverse working and protection paths to be provided in response to inquiry DA23SEP030208.  The same also applies to inquiry DA23SEP030209.      

Question  18:  G.841 provides recommendations for multiple  1+1 protection mechanisms.   Some of these protection mechanisms (e.g., revertive and bidirectional flavors) require communication via APS protocol exchanges using K1 and K2 bytes between network protection equipment (NPE).   Given the tolerance for latency provided in the PWS is 125 ms, does the 50 ms requirement exclude transmission delay? 

Response 18: See the response provided to question 17.  The restoration time requirement of 50ms is not applicable to these inquiries.  The Government switch is to perform the switching between the diverse working and protection paths to be provided in response to inquiry DA23SEP030208.  The same also applies to inquiry DA23SEP030209.  

Question 19:  All offerors will be proposing services that run on fiber provided by the offeror, LECs, and PTTs.  Given this fact, we interpret this requirement that the Government is interested in the option to purchase only that portion of the fiber owned by the offeror (which is the only portion the offeror has a right to sell).  Is this interpretation correct? 

Response 19:  The inquiries specify that the vendor identify the relevant fibers, optical and electrical equipment that is associated with the end-to-end IRU, for which the vendor has title, and may be legally offered to the Government with the option to purchase title and ownership.  

Question 20:  Is the option to purchase applicable only to new fiber installed by the offeror for this contract, or does it cover new and existing fiber used on this contract?

Response 20: There is no intent to limit what vendors offer the Government with the option to purchase title and ownership at conclusion of the IRU term. Refer to the response to question 19 above.

Question 21:  In inquiry DA23SEP030209, item I under Circuit Requires The Following Parameters, it specifies that the prime contractor shall have NOC's in both Conus and Oconus, presumably for redundancy in being able to diagnose and effect repairs in the event of a service interruption. (Please note that the same language is present in inquiry DA23SEP030208)  Is it sufficient for a bidder to clearly demonstrate that two Conus NOC's, with redundant paths to all network elements would satisfy the requirement for full, back-up NOC service?  

Response 21:  To clarify, the inquiry specifies that "THE VENDOR WINNING AWARD OF THIS OC-192C TRUNK SHALL HAVE THEIR OWN 24X7 NETWORK OPERATIONAL CENTER WITHIN CONUS AND OCONUS". It also specifies that "THE CONTRACTOR RECEIVING THIS AWARD WILL ASSUME THE ROLE OF OVERALL COORDINATOR AND WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROVIDING END-TO-END SERVICE AND ENSURE TECHNICAL SUFFICIENCY OF THE SERVICE". Additionally, the "CARRIER SHALL HAVE CIRCUIT VISIBILITY TO ASSIST IN ANY CIRCUIT OUTAGES" and "SHALL PROVIDE A SINGLE TOLL FREE TELEPHONE NUMBER TO THE GOVERNMENT FOR TROUBLE REPORTING and SHALL BE AVAILABLE 24X7, 365 DAYS A YEAR, INCLUDING FEDERAL HOLIDAYS". Accordingly, the vendor must have their own 24X7 NOC. It is acceptable for the vendor, given the role of overall coordinator and responsible party, to utilize its service provider partnership NOCs to augment the service providers' own NOCs to satisfy all the requirements of the inquiry. However, the vendor is responsible to clearly illustrate in their quote how each for the above referenced inquiry requirements, to include any other applicable inquiry requirements, are to be satisfied. 

Question 22:  Will DISA require the winning vendor to establish their "own" NOC in OCONUS or would it be acceptable to use the OCONUS service provider's/partner's existing network operations center?
Response 22:  Refer to the above response provided for Question 21.

Question 23:  Can physical site surveys be authorized post-award as part of planning and execution of the installation process?

Response 23:  Yes. The Vendor awarded these inquiries must coordinate directly with identified site personnel per the inquiry for post-award site surveys. Refer to, but not limited to, UNIQ INSTAL FACT; AMPLIFYING INFO: Paragraphs (C) and (D).
 

Question 24:  Will the Government make available, post-award, any "as-built" drawings of the sites/termination points for use in the detailed engineering process?

Response 24:  DISA will not provide as-built drawings for terminating sites. However, the vendor is encouraged to coordinate with the identified POCs at the respective terminating sites to determine if as-built drawings are available and can be obtained post-award. 

Question 25:  Must the protect path of TSR 23SEPT030208 be physically diverse including facilities and route avoidance from the primary path of 23SEPT030309?

Response 25: The entire TSR 23SEPT030208 circuit (to include working and protect paths) must be end-to-end assure diverse from the entire TSR 23SEPT030209 circuit.  The working path of TSR 23SEPT030208 must be fully diverse end-to-end of its protect path and the same is true for TSR 23SEPT030209. In other words, all elements of both circuits (to include their respective working and protect paths) must be fully end-to-end diverse of each other (e.g., facilities and route used for one path can not be use for any of the other three paths).

 

Question 26: Is order to comply with the symmetrical design requirement must the protect path of TSR 23SEPT030208 follow the exact physical route including facilities for the primary path of 23SEPT030309 ?

 
Response 26: Refer to answer provided above. Applicable inquiries are DA23SEP030208 and DA23SEP030209.  
Question 27: Is it acceptable to deploy switching gear at our pop to provide the switching between the OC-192c's, and then extend diverse fiber or OC-192 waves into the government locations?

Response 27: No. The inquiry requires both diverse facilities as well as fiber routes. Each respective circuit (e.g., inquiry DA23SEP030208) requirement is to be provided with physically diverse dual parent (e.g., two completely separate and diverse central office) connections to the SDP. Further, the OC-192c is to be provided with its working and protection paths diversely routed end-to-end; facilities used for one path cannot be used for the other path. The GFE (SDN) will perform the switching between the diversely routed working and protection paths of inquiry DA23SEP030208 using K1 and K2 bytes.  
 

Question 28: Does DITCO require and SDH STM-64 protected hand-off (4-fiber), or is a SONET protected OC-192 interface preferred?

Response 28:  The hand off at the GFE SDP must be 4-fiber; OC-192c diversely routed working and protection paths that shall not inhibit GFE (SDN) switching between the paths using K1 and K2 bytes. 

4.  The required due date for receipt of all site survey specific questions are to be provided by 1400 hours CDST on 30 Apr 04.

5.  The revised due date for receipt of quotes is hereby extended until 1400 hours CDST on 19 May 04.

